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SENATE 
WEDNESDAY, February 7, 1990. 

The Senate met at 10:45 a.m., Eastern Standard Time. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore (Robert C. Jubelirer) in the 
Chair. 

PRAYER 

The following prayer was offered by the Secretary of the 
Senate, Hon. MARK R. CORRIGAN: 

Heavenly Father, we pray that You would bless our 
Senators this day as they consider the legislation before them. 
Give them wisdom and good judgment. May there be 
harmony and cooperation within their ranks so that the best 
interests of the people of the Commonwealth may be served. 
Amen. 

JOURNAL APPROVED 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. A quorum of the Senate 
being present, the Clerk will read the Journal of the preceding 
Session of February 6, 1990. 

The Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding 
Session, when, on motion of Senator LOEPER, further 
reading was dispensed with, and the Journal was approved. 

HOUSE MESSAGES 

SENATE BILL RETURNED WITH AMENDMENTS 

The Clerk of the House of Representatives returned to the 
Senate SB 1095, with the information the House has passed 
the same with amendments in which the concurrence of the 
Senate is requested. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Pursuant to Senate Rule 
XV, Section 5, this bill will be referred to the Committee on 
Rules and Executive Nominations. 

HOUSE CONCURS IN SENATE 
CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 

The Clerk of the House of Representatives informed the 
Senate that the House has concurred in resolution from the 
Senate, entitled: 

Weekly Adjournment. 

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

Senator HOLL, from the Committee on Banking and 
Insurance, reported the following bills: 

SB 155 (Pr. No. 1909) (Amended) 

An Act amending the act of May 17, 1921 (P. L. 789, No. 
285), entitled, as amended, "The Insurance Department Act of 
one thousand nine hundred and twenty-one," further permitting 
the appointment of persons other than the Insurance Commis
sioner as receiver. 

SB 408 (Pr. No. 1910) (Amended) 

An Act amending the act of May 17, 1921 (P. L. 789, No. 
285), entitled, as amended, "The Insurance Department Act of 
one thousand nine hundred and twenty-one," providing for 
endorsement of agents' worthiness by sponsoring companies; and 
providing for disclosure by the Insurance Commissioner of 
certain information relating to agents. 

SB 561 (Pr. No. 599) 

An Act requiring residential mortgage lenders to give mort
gage debtors credit for discounts received for early payment of 
certain taxes; and imposing a penalty. 

SB 1059 (Pr. No. 1250) 

An Act amending the act of May 17, 1921 (P. L. 682, No. 
284), entitled "The Insurance Company Law of 1921," providing 
for the standardization of health care insurance claim forms. 

SB 1099 (Pr. No. 1319) 

An Act providing for reimbursement by insurance companies, 
professional health service plan corporations, fraternal benefit 
societies and voluntary nonprofit health service plans for service 
performed by a licensed speech-language pathologist, a licensed 
audiologist or a licensed teacher of the hearing impaired; and 
providing for further duties of the Insurance Department. 

SB 1213 (Pr. No. 1497) 

An Act regulating credit services; prohibiting certain activ
ities; and providing for certain information to be given to buyers, 
for the contents of contracts and for enforcement. 

SB 1415 (Pr. No. 1911) (Amended) 

An Act amending the act of December 5, 1972 (P. L. 1280, 
No. 284), entitled "Pennsylvania Securities Act of 1972," adding 
a definition of "associated person"; and further providing for 
registration requirements and procedure, for suspension and 
revocation of registration, for civil liability, for criminal penalties 
and for fees. 

HB 382 (Pr. No. 3063) (Amended) 
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An Act amending the act of June 28, 1947 (P. L. 1110, No. Dawida 
476), known as the "Motor Vehicle Sales Finance Act,'' adding a Fattah 
definition of "heavy commercial motor vehicle"; and providing Fisher 
for contracts and for rates. Furno 

Lewis 
Lincoln 
Loeper 
Lynch 

Reibman 
Rhoades 
Rocks 

Wenger 
Williams 
Wilt 

Senator SAL VA TORE, from the Committee on Military 
and Veterans Affairs, reported the following bill: 

SB 1120 (Pr. No. 1360) 

An Act amending Title 51 (Military Affairs) of the Pennsyl
vania Consolidated Statutes, further providing for paralyzed 
veteran's pension. 

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES 

Senator BRIGHTBILL. Mr. President, I would ask for a 
legislative leave for Senator Shaffer. 

Senator MELLOW. Mr. President, I request a legislative 
leave for Senator Furno. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Brightbill requests 
a legislative leave for Senator Shaffer. Senator Mellow 
requests a legislative leave for Senator Furno. The Chair hears 
no objections. Those leaves will be granted. 

CALENDAR 

THIRD CONSIDERATION CALENDAR 

BILL REREPORTED FROM COMMITTEE AS 
AMENDED ON THIRD CONSIDERATION 

AND FINAL PASSAGE 

SB 1262 (Pr. No. 1892)-The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending the act of March 4, 1970 (P. L. 128, No. 
49), entitled "An act granting to the Governor of the Common
wealth the sole authority for regulating the display of the flag of 
the United States from any public ground or building and from 
any ground or building of certain other institutions," further 
providing for display of the official POW /MIA flag. 

Considered the third time and agreed to, 
And the amendments made thereto having been printed as 

required by the Constitution, 

On the question, 
Shall the bill pass finally? 

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions 
of the Constitution and were as follows, viz: 

YEAS-50 

Afflerbach Greenleaf Madigan Ross 
Andrezeski Greenwood Mellow Salvatore 
Armstrong Helfrick Musto Scanlon 
Baker Hess O'Pake Shaffer 
Belan Holl Pecora Shumaker 
Bell Hopper Peterson Stapleton 
Bodack Jones Porterfield Stewart 
Brightbill Jubelirer Punt Stout 
Corman Lemmond Rego Ii Tilghman 

NAYS-0 

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted 
"aye," the question was determined in the affirmative. 

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate present said bill 
to the House of Representatives for concurrence. 

BILL LAID ON THE TABLE 

SB 295 (Pr. No. 302) - The Senate proceeded to consider
ation of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending the act of August 13, 1963 (P. L. 774, No. 
390), entitled "County Jail Prisoner Temporary Release Law,'' 
authorizing the collection of confinement costs in cases relating 
to prisoners confined only during weekends or short periods of 
time. 

Upon motion of Senator LOEPER, and agreed to, the bill 
was laid on the table. 

BILL OVER IN ORDER 

RB 491 - Without objection, the bill was passed over in its 
order at the request of Senator LOEPER. 

BILL LAID ON THE TABLE 

RB 790 (Pr. No. 2717) -The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act providing for the adoption of capital projects to be 
financed from current revenues of the Boat and Fish Funds. 

Upon motion of Senator LOEPER, and agreed to, the bill 
was laid on the table. 

BILL OVER IN ORDER 

SB 854 - Without objection, the bill was passed over in its 
order at the request of Senator LOEPER. 

BILL ON THIRD CONSIDERATION AMENDED 

SB 1052 (Pr. No. 1238) -The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act encouraging the use of alternative motor fuels; provid
ing for acquisition of State-owned vehicles which operate on 
alternative motor fuels; providing for powers and duties of the 
Department of General Services and the Pennsylvania Energy 
Office; and establishing a State Government Task Force on Alter
native Motor Fuels. 

Considered the third time, 

On the question, 
Will the Senate agree to the bill on third consideration? 
Senator RHOADES, by unanimous consent, offered the 

following amendment No. A0396: 

Amend Sec. 6, page 7, line 27, by striking out "and" 
Amend Sec. 6, page 8, line 1, by removing the period after 

"Representatives" and inserting: 
and three representatives of energy industries affected by alterna
tive fuels to be appointed by the Governor, one each from a list of 
three nominees provided by each of the following: 
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(1) Pennsylvania Coal Association. 
(2) Pennsylvania Gas Association. 
(3) Associated Petroleum Industries of Pennsylvania. 

On the question, 
Will the Senate agree to the amendment? 
It was agreed to. 
Without objection, the bill, as amended, was passed over in 

its order at the request of Senator RHOADES. 

BILLS ON THIRD CONSIDERATION 
AND FINAL PASSAGE 

HB 1068 (Pr. No. 3061)-The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending Title 18 (Crimes and Offenses) of the Penn
sylvania Consolidated Statutes, providing for the offense of 
flight to avoid apprehension, trial or punishment; empowering 
arresting officers to seize and take possession of certain vehicles; 
and further providing for discrimination on account of guide 
dogs. 

Considered the third time and agreed to, 
And the amendments made thereto having been printed as 

required by the Constitution, 

On the question, 
Shall the bill pass finally? 

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of 
the Constitution and were as follows, viz: 

YEAS-50 

Afflerbach Greenleaf Madigan Ross 
Andrezeski Greenwood Mellow Salvatore 
Armstrong Helfrick Musto Scanlon 
Baker Hess O'Pake Shaffer 
Belan Holl Pecora Shumaker 
Bell Hopper Peterson Stapleton 
Bodack Jones Porterfield Stewart 
Brightbill Jubelirer Punt Stout 
Corman Lemmond Rego Ii Tilghman 
Dawida Lewis Reibman Wenger 
Fattah Lincoln Rhoades Williams 
Fisher Loeper Rocks Wilt 
Furno Lynch 

NAYS-0 

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted 
"aye," the question was determined in the affirmative. 

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate return said bill to 
the House of Representatives with information that the 
Senate has passed the same with amendments in which con
currence of the House is requested. 

SB 1303 (Pr. No. 1633) -The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending Title 66 (Public Utilities) of the Pennsylvania 
Consolidated Statutes, requiring the commission to establish by 
rule, and on a reasonable cost basis, the fees to be collected from 
public utilities for the testing of their meters and other measuring· 
apparatus. 

Considered the third time and agreed to, 

On the question, 
Shall the bill pass finally? 

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of 
the Constitution and were as follows, viz: 

YEAS-50 

Afflerbach Greenleaf Madigan Ross 
Andrezeski Greenwood Mellow Salvatore 
Armstrong Helfrick Musto Scanlon 
Baker Hess O'Pake Shaffer 
Belan Holl Pecora Shumaker 
Bell Hopper Peterson Stapleton 
Bodack Jones Porterfield Stewart 
Brightbill Jubelirer Punt Stout 
Corman Lemmond Rego Ii Tilghman 
Dawida Lewis Reibman Wenger 
Fattah Lincoln Rhoades Williams 
Fisher Loeper Rocks Wilt 
Furno Lynch 

NAYS-0 

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted 
"aye," the question was determined in the affirmative. 

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate present said bill 
to the House of Representatives for concurrence. 

SECOND CONSIDERATION CALENDAR 

BILLS OVER IN ORDER 

HB 247 and SB 333 - Without objection, the bills were 
passed over in their order at the request of Senator LOEPER. 

BILL LAID ON THE TABLE 

HB 463 (Pr. No. 1405) - The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act providing for additional civil damages for the conver
sion of timber. 

Upon motion of Senator LOEPER, and agreed to, the bill 
was laid on the table. 

BILLS OVER IN ORDER 

SB 473, 474, HB 612 and SB 634 - Without objection, the 
bills were passed over in their order at the request of Senator 
LOEPER. 

BILL ON SECOND CONSIDERATION 

SB 647 (Pr. No. 1808) - The Senate proceeded to consider
ation of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending Title 34 (Game) of the Pennsylvania Consoli
dated Statutes, providing for the issuance of reduced fee hunting 
licenses to certain parties who open land to public hunting. 

Considered the second time and agreed to, 
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for third consider

ation. 

BILLS OVER IN ORDER 

SB 649, 684, 758, HB 1126, SB 1131 and HB 1141 
. Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at 
the request of Senator LOEPER. 
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BILL ON SECOND CONSIDERATION 

HB 1179 (Pr. No. 3062) The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending the act of August 10, 1951 (P. L. 1189, No. 
265), entitled, as amended, "An act regulating the appointment, 
promotion, suspension, reduction, removal and reinstatement of 
employes (except superintendents, assistant superintendents, 
inspectors, chief clerks and schoo] guards) in bureaus of police in 
cities of the second class; and defining the powers and duties of 
civil service commissions in such cities for such purposes," 
further providing for positions in the competitive class of the civil 
service, for examinations, for reinstatement of emp1oyees, for eli
gibility for promotion and appointment, for filling vacancies, for 
the composition of po1ice trial boards, for removal, discharge 
and suspension, and for reductions in force. 

Considered the second time and agreed to, 
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for third consider

ation. 

BILLS OVER IN ORDER 

SB 1202, 1259, 1300, 1319, 1354, HB 1572 and 1781 -
Without objection, the bills were passed over in their order at 
the request of Senator LOEPER. 

BOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 
NO. 223, CALLED UP 

Senator LOEPER, without objection, called up from page 
6 of the Calendar, Bouse Concurrent Resolution No. 223, 
entitled: 

Recognizing the Carbon County Unit of the Pennsy1vania Con
servation Corps on its receipt of the National Association of 
Service and Conservation Corps Exemp1ary Project Award. 

On the question, 
Will the Senate concur in the resolution? 

SENA TE CONCURS IN HOUSE CONCURRENT 
RESOLUTION NO. 223 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I move the Senate do 
concur in House Concurrent Resolution No. 223. 

The motion was agreed to and the resolution was concurred 
in. 

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate inform the House 
of Representatives accordingly. 

EXECUTIVE NOMINATION 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion was made by Senator WILT, 
That the Senate do now resolve itself into Executive Session 

for the purpose of considering certain nomination made by 
the Governor. 

Which was agreed to. 

NOMINATION TAKEN FROM THE TABLE 

Senator WILT. Mr. President, I call from the table certain 
nomination and ask for its consideration. 

The Clerk read the nomination as follows: 

CONTROLLER, ARMSTRONG COUNTY 

October 17, 1989. 

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsy1vania: 
In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate 

for the advice and consent of the Senate, Darlene J. Pike, Old 
Mil1 Road, Freeport 16229, Armstrong County, Fortieth Senato
rial District, for appointment as Controller, in and for the 
County of Armstrong, to serve until the first Monday of January, 
1992, vice Timothy L. Pesci, resigned. 

ROBERT P. CASEY. 
On the question, 
Will the Senate advise and consent to the nomination? 

The yeas and nays were required by Senator WILT and 
were as follows, viz: 

YEAS-50 

Afflerbach Greenleaf Madigan Ross 
Andrezeski Greenwood Mellow Salvatore 
Armstrong Helfrick Musto Scanlon 
Baker Hess O'Pake Shaffer 
Belan Holl Pecora Shumaker 
Bell Hopper Peterson Stapleton 
Bodack Jones Porterfield Stewart 
Brightbill Jubelirer Punt Stout 
Corman Lemmond Rego Ii Tilghman 
Dawida Lewis Reibman Wenger 
Fattah Lincoln Rhoades Williams 
Fisher Loeper Rocks Wilt 
Furno Lynch 

NAYS-0 

A constitutional two-thirds majority of all the Senators 
having voted "aye," the question was determined in the affir
mative. 

Ordered, That the Governor be informed accordingly. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION RISES 

Senator WILT. Mr. President, I move that the Executive 
Session do now rise. 

The motion was agreed to. 

RECESS 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, at this time I would ask 
for a recess of the Senate. For the information of the 
Members, the Conference Committee Report on House Bill 
No. 121, the automobile insurance reform bill, is currently 
being debated and considered on the House floor. I do not 
have a specific time frame as to how long that action will take, 
but I would ask that the Senate stand in recess awaiting action 
by the House and then I would suggest we reconvene in order 
to consider that conference report. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Loeper has 
requested a recess of the Senate to the call of the Chair, the 
purpose of which is to await the action of the House of Repre
sentatives on House Bill No. 121. For that purpose, the Senate 
will stand in recess. 
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Senator LINCOLN. Mr. President, I realize it is very diffi
cult to give any time, but let us say it will not be before 1 :30 
p.m? 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. If the gentleman is asking 
me that question, he gives me more credit than I deserve. I 
have no idea when the House of Representatives will do its 
business. If the Majority Leader wants to give a minimum 
time, Senator Loeper, Senator Lincoln is asking if it would be 
before 1:30 p.m. 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, if the gentleman could 
give me time frames in the House of Representatives, I would 
be happy to agree with him. 

Senator LINCOLN. Mr. President, the only reason I ask is 
so that the Members will know if they want to go out for 
lunch or anything. We do not anticipate anything for a couple 
of hours at least. 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I would think it would be 
better if they stay available. I do not believe it is going to be a 
couple of hours. 

Senator LINCOLN. Mr. President, that is the answer to the 
question. Thank you very much. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. For the purposes 
announced before, the Senate will stand in recess. 

AFfER RECESS 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The time of recess having 
elapsed, the Senate will be in order. 

HOUSE MESSAGE 

HOUSE ADOPTS REPORT OF COMMITTEE 
OF CONFERENCE 

The Clerk of the House of Representatives informed the 
Senate that the House has adopted Report of Committee of 
Conference on HB 121, which was placed on the Calendar. 

SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 

SUPPLEMENTAL CALENDAR NO. 1 

REPORT OF COMMITTEE OF CONFERENCE 

REPORT ADOPTED 

HB 121 (Pr. No. 3051) - The Senate proceeded to consid
eration of the bill, entitled: 

An Act amending Titles 18 (Crimes and Offenses), 42 (Judi
ciary and Judicial Procedure) and 75 (Vehicles) of the Pennsyl
vania Consolidated Statutes, further providing for corrupt orga
nizations; providing for motor vehicle insurance fraud; providing 
for certification of pleadings, motions and other papers; provid
ing for special damages; further providing for vehicle registra
tion; further providing for financial responsibility and insurance 
related to motor vehicles; providing for proof of insurance and 
for election of tort options and for medical treatment and bene
fits; further providing for reinstatement of operating privileges or 
vehicle registration; further providing for certain safety and anti
theft devices, for a market study, for motor vehicle insurance in 
cities of the first class, and for insurance premium rates and 

premium rate procedures; further providing for inspection of 
vehicles; providing for certain reductions in automobile insurance 
premiums; conferring powers and duties on the Insurance 
Department and the Department of Transportation; adding pro
visions relating to motor vehicle insurance fraud; and making 
repeals. 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I move the Senate adopt 
the Report of Committee of Conference on House Bill No. 
121. 

On the question, 
Will the Senate agree to the motion? 

Senator HOLL. Mr. President, I rise to speak in favor of 
the adoption of this Conference Committee report. This 
report is based on years of effort on the part of many individ
uals in this Body, in the House of Representatives, in the 
industry and various associations, wherever information 
could be garnered. The Senate has already passed more than 
90 percent of the contents of this package. Senate bills that 
were passed in the last two Sessions of this Body on auto 
insurance and sent to the House are the result of many public 
hearings in different parts of Pennsylvania, along with all 
available sources of information, to develop factual informa
tion to deal with the insurance crisis. The Conference Com
mittee package, which is before us now, reflects many years of 
work and is the result of the best information available to this 
Body. It includes three actuarial studies, one by the industry 
and one by AIA, the American Insurance Association, and 
the Insurance Department. Basically, the major item con
tained in this package is the optional threshold, which we 
know will reduce the expensive high frequency of lawsuits, 
many of which are frivolous. It provides for a cost contain
ment on health care, which is a major cost item, which is out 
of control. It also contains major changes in the law dealing 
with the items of fraud, frivolous lawsuits, theft, and others. 
Factors in this package should result in savings to the insur
ance industry which will be passed on to the motorists under 
the mandate contained in this legislation which will result in a 
10 percent across-the-board reduction in insurance premiums, 
as well as an additional 12 percent reduction when a motorist 
elects the optional threshold not to sue for pain and suffering 
which results in a total savings on the bottom line of the 
premium of 22 percent. This package deserves a fair chance. 
There are many amendments that were considered which were 
not adopted, and there are new amendments which are 
already being discussed which may lead to further improve
ments to the concept of this package. But, what I am trying to 
say here today is that quick action is essential and is absolutely 
necessary. The motorists in Pennsylvania may not understand 
the complex issues involved in automobile insurance. 
However, they do understa:id the cost of automobile insur
ance is so high that tnany motorists cannot afford the cost of 
the insurance and, therefore, it is not available to them, 
regardless of their willingness to purchase protection. These 
motorists in Pennsylvania expect action and they expect it 
now. Therefore, Mr. President, I urge immediate passage of 
this House bill. 
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.LEGISLATIVE LEAVES 

Senator MELLOW. Mr. President, I request temporary 
Capitol leaves for Senator Scanlon and Senator Ross. 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I would request tempo
rary Capitol leaves on behalf of Senator Pecora, Senator 
Wenger and Senator Peterson. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Mellow has 
requested temporary Capitol leaves for Senator Ross and 
Senator Scanlon. Senator Loeper has requested temporary 
Capitol leaves for Senator Pecora, Senator Wenger and 
Senator Peterson. The Chair hears no objection to those 
requests for leaves and the leaves will be granted. 

And the question recurring, 
Will the Senate agree to the motion? 

Senator BELL. Mr. President, this Conference Committee 
Report cannot be amended, or else I would be offering an 
amendment for a consumer advocate. I think there is a great 
need in the Insurance Department for a consumer advocate. 
The Senate Committee on Appropriations has just held hear
ings on the issue of the consumer advocate in front of the 
PUC and the small business advocate. Once again, from 
observing the many Senators who were present, their not 
having asked too many questions evidenced a strong endorse
ment of the idea of a consumer advocate for the PUC. Thus, a 
consumer advocate is, likewise, needed in the insurance busi
ness. 

We have a lengthy bill in front of us. I know there are some 
parts that I do not agree with, but this is the only bill in front 
of us. Where I come from, where our rates are almost as high 
as Philadelphia, the big question or the big thought of my 
constituents is the bottom line. How much is it going to cost 
me? How much is it going to save? I have heard and read, and 
it is primarily from the Governor's Office and the conferees, 
that there could be a savings as much as 22 percent. That is 
what my constituents are interested in. They have to pay that 
money and it is coming out of their pocketbooks. I will vote 
"yes." 

Senator FA TT AH. Mr. President, we have a bill in front of 
us, the Conference Committee Report on House Bill No. 121. 
I rise to speak in favor of the Conference Committee Report, 
to commend the leadership in the Governor's Office for arriv
ing at this compromise, and to suggest it is obvious to almost 
anyone involved in this entire debate there is a great deal of 
caution and complication as it relates to the comments made 
on the floor of the House and comments we have heard in 
caucus and comments in the press about what this bill actually 
means. But the public has been convinced that because of the 
high rates we need to do something, and we are going to do 
something today, hopefully. We are going to pass this Confer
ence Committee Report. I remain convinced, however, that 
the way to the lowest possible premiums for Philadelphia 
drivers is through a single carrier. This Conference Commit
tee Report is the first recognition of that need through a 
second, more comprehensive study. 

I would like to enter into the record a letter addressed to my 
leadership, the gentleman from Lackawanna, Senator 
Mellow, from the Insurance Commissioner, indicating that 
that study will be complete in six months on the single carrier 
and to again just urge my colJeagues that even though we may 
have a number of legitimate concerns about this bill, and 
obviously it is a debatable issue, one that will probably find its 
way into the courts, even, we still at this point take at least one 
step forward, hopefully, in resolving this problem. 

(The following letter was made a part of the record at the 
request of the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator 
FATTAH:) 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
INSURANCE DEPARTMENT 

HARRISBURG 
February 7, 1990 

Honorable Robert J. Mellow 
Senate of Pennsylvania 
169 Main Capitol Building 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Dear Senator Mellow: 
As you know, the Insurance Department has preliminarily 

reviewed Senator Fattah's plan for a one carrier system for cities 
of the first class. Based on that review, the Insurance Department 
intends to complete the study called for in HB 121 within six 
months of the signing of the law. 

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to give me a 
call. 

Sincerely, 
CONSTANCE B. FOSTER 
Insurance Commissioner 

Senator RHOADES. Mr. President, there is the Chinese 
proverb that says a journey of a thousand miles begins with 
the first step. I think we are taking another first step today, 
however shaky it may be. When I look and find out that we 
have the insurance industry, the trial lawyers and the medical 
industry upset with us, but at the same time have found now 
that we are in agreement between the administration, the 
House, and I will say probably most assuredly the Senate, it 
seems that things must be coming together. I agree with the 
gentleman from Delaware, Senator Bell. I do not agree with 
everything in the bill. I think tliere are a number of things that 
still have to be corrected in it, but I look at it as an effort, an 
attempt to make it better than what it was and, boy, did it 
need the improvement. I also look at it as an opportunity to 
keep the heat on, because we are going to be back in six 
months or a year, or a year and a half to two years later after 
we have gone through everything and the gyrations come out 
of this legislation. But the end result is we will have a better 
product for every step. We do now. The fraud section that is 
in here we have not had before, and after we have passed it 
out of this Chamber on three or four occasions, we finally 
have something now that is going to be adopted. We have the 
insurance industry itself mandated to provide a fraud plan 
approved by the Commissioner. We are limiting lawyers from 
chasing ambulances by putting a frivolous suit section in. One 
key thing which I have always complained about-I do not 
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think it is strong enough-is we are forcing through registra
tion, new purchases and inspections to make sure people have 
insurance. We are letting people go out and pick up these 
licenses and these registrations. It will probably go on and on 
because there are about four pages of notes just on reviewing 
this bill and.the number of changes that are made. Some, as I 
said, are strong, some not as strong. 

I have concerns about the limited tort alternatives. 
Although that may give us a 12 percent reduction, there is a 
question in there relative to serious injury. Although we used· 
the Michigan statute, there is a section in there, too, which I 
think you will find the trial lawyers using as a hook to get in 
and come back and sue. But if they do, I think we must be 
ready to come back again and say we mean what we mean and 
we will back it up continually. The same thing with medical 
coverage. I am concerned that the 110 percent at the 75 per
centile is going to create some other problems, either person
ally for the ratepayers, because they will have to make up the 
difference, or Blue Cross/Blue Shield or medical coverages. 
But I say if we have that in place, then it is going to be our 
responsibility to continue to push on. 

I think I would say I follow the same as Senator Bell said. 
This is a first step. This is an effort. I would like to see that we 
put additional legislation in to crack down on uninsured 
motorists that makes it even more difficult than what we 
have, that we do put a consumer advocate in the Insurance 
Department, that we do let the Insurance Commissioner seek 
more data from carriers. I think these are the things the Com
missioner should oversee to insure that the rates the insurance 
companies are looking for are true and exact. When you look 
at the fraud and these other things put in, we are saving the 
insurance companies money. That, in turn, should be turned 
back to the consumer. The same thing with medical costs. I 
think we have to make sure we provide that coverage, but we 
must insure that the rates are true and correct. I see all these 
things and I say today is a first step. This will be the first time 
in my ten years here that I will vote in the affirmative for
and I will not use the words no fault-an insurance package. I 
think this will be our first step and our first opportunity to 
reduce rates and to give the people the kind of coverage they 
need and the kind of insurance program they should have here 
in Pennsylvania. 

Senator JONES. Mr. President, I am faced today with that 
old situation of the good news and the bad news. For my con
stituents whose work has enabled them to afford automobile 
insurance premiums, today is good news for them. They will 
receive real rate reductions on July 1st that will last for two 
years. For my constituents who are still too poor to afford the 
cost of automobile insurance, Mr. President-that is still 
most of my constituents-today is a continuation of the bad 
news they have been facing for a long time. If someone who 
does not have insurance now tries to get insurance on July 1st, 
she or he will find out that they will be put into the assigned 
risk pool. I recognize that people with clean driving records 
for three years will get lower rates, but we are not helping 
anyone who has not had a license continuously for three 
years, the way I understand this legislation. 

I will vote for this package before us today because one 
thing we do today will help all of my constituents and that is 
the study for a single carrier for Philadelphia, whiCh was the 
idea introduced by the gentleman from Philadelphia, Senator 
Fattah. We have a unique problem in Philadelphia that 
requires its own solution. We have an insurance market that 
has priced itself out of reach of most people. As each year 
goes by, more and more of my constituents cannot afford the 
outrageous premiums being offered to them and, as each 
person drops insurance, the rates go up for the rest. 

Mr. President, my constituents want to buy insurance. My 
constituents are no different than other Pennsylvanians. They 
respect the law and they want to obey the law. But, Mr. Presi
dent, we have made it impossible for many of them to obey 
the law. Worst of all, we will increase penalties for those who 
cannot afford to pay the high rates. Once again we will blame 
the victims for our past mistakes. Nonetheless I believe, and I 
truly believe, a single carrier for Philadelphia will help all of 
my constituents. I am hopeful, Mr. President, the Insurance 
Department can expedite this study so all Pennsylvanians can 
benefit from what we will do today. The package before us 
makes me concerned about what will happen on July 1, 1992. 
While I certainly support reduced rates for the next two years, 
and while many of my constituents will be helped now, it will 
not be good enough if we allow the rate rip-offs to start again. 
In two years, Mr. President, the next time we consider this 
issue-and we know there will be a next time-I hope we can 
offer something better than reducing $2,000 premiums down 
to just $1,600. I certainly hope we will not see today's $2,000 
premiums become $2,400 on July 1, 1992. For today, Mr. 
President, the package before us is an improvement and, cer
tainly, as my colleague on the other side said, a step in the 
right direction. But, I would hope that we would not stop 
stepping, that we will continue to step on to make it possible 
for all people everywhere to be able to obey the law by having 
auto insurance premiums they can afford. 

Senator DA WIDA. Mr. President, I rise in support of this 
bill. It is, I think, 80 percent good and I am in agreement with 
80 percent of it. If I think about it, I do not agree with my 
wife 80 percent of the time. So, that is not too bad. The reality 
of this bill, though, is something I think needs to be addressed 
just briefly, and that is that some people in government stood 
up to a lot of assorted special interests. I think the Governor 
deserves a lot of credit. I think the Democratic leadership 
deserves a lot of credit. But, actually, I think the gentleman 
from Delaware, Senator Loeper, and the Republican leader
ship' deserve a lot of credit, and I do not mind saying that 
because they had to make some changes that were pretty 
tough and they did it and this bill, I think, stands as a reason
able compromise. I would bring to the attention, though, of 
the Republican leadership after their courageous stand today, 
there is an issue that was left out of this compromise, dealing 
with data disclosure, and the gentleman from Schuylkill, 
Senator Rhoades, brought it up. Three out of the four 
caucuses that make up this great General Assembly, as well as 
the Governor, are all in agreement on a package which I have 
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worked on for the past five years on data disclosure. I ask the 
leadership of the Republicans if they would consider looking 
at that piece of legislation because, indeed, if you want it to 
happen, it will happen, and we could well complete the cycle 
of what is needed in automobile insurance. We did the short
term issues today. The long-term issues are really in the data 
disclosure area. Again, I compliment the leadership and the 
Governor and hope everyone votes "yes." 

Senator WILLIAMS. Mr. President, I agree with the gentle 
lady from Philadelphia, Senator Jones, in the sense that we 
are in the worst of times and the best of times at the same 
time. The best of times in that the Governor and the leader
ship have gotten together and cranked out a piece of legisla
tion in this area which is going to pass. The worst of times in 
that some of the main or fundamental questions that arise, 
i.e., the issues of Philadelphia, have not been included in that 
process. It is my judgment that those major and awesome 
prob!ems will come back to haunt us. I do agree that we are 
not finished with the problem. I do have some reluctance in 
voting for this bill in that why should we wait to complete the 
cycle of solving the major problem? That does not seem to 
make a lot of common sense. I have said to myself that my 
thoughts may be pious. Maybe it will work, maybe move 
ahead. I do know that this piece of legislation has left out the 
200,000 people who may have no insurance at all or may be an 
assigned risk in Philadelphia and to whom this bill does not 
speak at all. No rate reduction, no benefit, no nothing. If they 
go in, they come in at an outrageous rate. If they do not come 
in, they have a system that says you are illegal and we are 
going to send people to get you. You cannot work, you cannot 
think, you cannot drive. I do not know where we are going to 
get all the manpower to police that in the first place when we 
cannot even police the drug situation. That scares me. The 
people left out of this and others have no way in and no way 
out, a major problem that will divert our attention for some 
time to come. Everyone here knows that Philadelphia is a 
major part of the problem. I agree that one creative offering, 
i.e., the single carrier, still faces us, still stares us in the face, 
and I have not seen anything to refute that that would not be 
something that should and could work. I do agree there 
should be a deadline to move on that and it was not included 
in the process. I am disappointed that so many people, there
fore, poor and otherwise, are going to be out and we have not 
dealt with that. 

I hope we do not congratulate ourselves that we have rolled 
back rates that are outrageous and have accomplished what 
we set out to do. Mr. President, in stating my fundamental 
disappointment and observations, I repeat that not one of us 
can play God. The train has left the station. I was one who did 
not vote for no-fault because the promises did not seem to be 
there, and some years later we had to unhook that because it 
was not there. I am hopeful that all the questions that have 
been raised in the caucuses and among many of us, the reser
vations that are real, that we will do something to attend to in 
the doing in the next several months so we will not have 
passed a bill that takes us out of school and confronts us two 
years later with another ogre on such a fundamental issue. 

I want to end by congratulating those in this Body who par
ticipated in the hard negotiations to come out with something 
that could be satisfactory to many of the forces here, because 
it has been a difficult road and it does seem that there was a 
respect and a recognition in some areas that many of us saw as 
quite fundamental. That is that there be a rollback and that 
people be guaranteed that and there be some compromise on 
the question of whether the right to sue should be handled a 
certain way. I am one who feels you cannot discriminate 
against poor people when it comes to whether you can afford 
suing or not. I still think that faces us, but I do think some of 
the leaders of this Body did work with the Governor and 
others to bring about what they believed would be a step and, 
therefore, my remarks of my own disappointment do not 
mean I do not recognize that was a hard job and to that extent 
I congratulate you with the understanding that we all know we 
have quite a ways to go. They are Senator Jones' constituents. 
They are Senator Fumo's constituents. They are Senator 
Rocks' constituents. They are Senator Salvatore's constitu
ents. They are Senator Fattah's constituents. Those constitu
ents are still sitting on the edge, nervous and waiting for relief 
in the field we are dealing with at the present time, and I hope 
we do not in the months to come forget that. 

Senator SALVA TORE. Mr. President, I would like to first 
say there are a lot of things in this report that I do not like, but 
because, I guess, other interested parties wanted them, that is 
why we have them. I do not know if this Conference Report 
on House Bill No. 121 is going to solve the crisis we have in 
Philadelphia. I am not even sure if it will keep rates from sky
rocketing after 1992. But I am sure there is going to be a need 
to address automobile insurance again sometime in the near 
future. 

Section 29 provides for a study by the Joint State Govern
ment Commission concerning insurance in cities of the first 
class, and I guess we probably could spread it across the Com
monwealth. With this study in place, we can be prepared the 
next time we change the law. My idea, which was Section 29, 
was put in there, but they did not go far enough. The reason I 
have to explain it, Mr. President, is because I want them to 
know what legislative intent we meant by this study. 

PennDOT would transmit the premium dollars to insurance 
companies based on their market share in Pennsylvania, 
similar to the way we assign risk drivers when they get 
assigned to insurance companies. It is not the legislative intent 
to place the state-and that is important-in the insurance 
business. The last thing we need is a CAT Fund or, like New 
Jersey, where they have a joint underwriters association. The 
study assesses the feasibility of changing the current system 
for Philadelphia drivers from one where the car is insured to' 
one where we insure the driver, and the driver would be 
insured. Insurance would be a condition of licensure as 
opposed to a condition of car registration. Under the system 
they would be studied. Each driver would be required to have 
a basic insurance policy, a liability coverage of $10,000 per 
individual and $20,000 per accident and some medical cover
age. Drivers would obtain and pay for the basic policy as part 
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of their annual driver's license renewal. A driver's policy 
number and his drive.r's license number would be his Social 
Security number. Mr. President, that is important, and we 
should have had it in this bill. The operator's number and 
policy number should be the same as the $ocial Security 
number. The Social Security number should be used all the 
way through the system, and we would find that we would get 
better protection and better enforcement. 

To address the problem of a driver not having the money to 
pay the premium up front, the system could be phased in so 
the people can save the money to pay the premium, and they 
would be financing up to 70 percent of the premium through 
an outside financier. The positive aspect of this proposal is: 
Drivers cause accidents, not cars. Therefore, it is more appro
priate to insure the driver. Since there are more licensed 
drivers in Pennsylvania than rented or private cars, 7. 7 vs. 
6.2, the premium now per individual would be less. Best of 
all, there would be no uninsured motorists in the Common
wealth. In Philadelphia our biggest problem is the uninsured 
motorist. I do not know what the figures are but they are stag
gering. That is why this is going to be a Band-Aid to us. The 
10 percent and 12 percent, if you seek the limited tort, is not 
going to be a hell of a lot when you are paying $2,000 and 
$3,000 for insurance. 

Last, but not least-because I do not want to delay the 
effort of other people who want to speak here-I want to say 
for the record a lot of people think, boom, July lst, their 
insurance premiums are going to go down. That is not true. 
They are going to go down when their policy lapses. Do not 
expect on July 1st everybody gets a reduction, because if you 
bought insurance in June, and your policy lapses in June, you 
are going to have to wait until next June before you get a 
reduction in your policy. I want to make that clear so the 
public is not fooled and says, my God, where is my 22 percent 
if I take limited tort, or my 10 percent if I do not? All I am 
saying, Mr. President, is I am going to vote "yes" for this 
because it is the best we have. I do not like a lot of what is in 
here. My constituents have been hoodwinked, telling me I 
have to vote for the Casey plan. Well, I am voting for this but 
I am not happy with it, and I know they are not going to be 
happy after it is all over. 

Senator ROCKS. Mr. President, it has been a long road for 
all of us, longer for many of us, to the final consideration of 
what is now House Bill No. 121. I have learned a couple of 
things, as you do in this legislative process, with this round of 
automobile insurance reform. I finally had to face two things: 
One, we as a Legislature and a state government are expected 
to be insurance experts in providing for what are lower insur
ance rates in this Commonwealth and, particularly, in my 
corner of the state, the southeast. Secondly, and maybe more 
dangerously, by the time we get to this point, we believe we 
are. 

In listening to the debate, as much as I could, for several 
hours in the House on final passage today and our own debate 
here in the Senate before the vote on 1990's automobile insur
ance reform, I am amazed that we sound very much like war-

riors who have been to a front, and the land mines went off in 
1984 and the mortar came in heavy and we have been sent 
back to the front in 1990, and while we have a willingness to 
fight the war, we really do not want to go to the front. 

Mr. President, as a Philadelphian I am absolutely support
ing House Bill No. 121.' I think every one of us in here knows 
it is not possible for us to produce a perfect piece of automo
bile insurance reform legislation. As a matter of fact, if I may, 
let us look a little bit at the road that brought us to today. 
After 1984, in the City of Philadelphia, almost without excep
tion before the implementation of our then new reform act, 
every company writing insurance in that city rushed to a new 
rate filing, and higher rates went in place before we were able 
to feel the impact of a new piece of legislation. We prohibited 
that from happening this time. So we learned something. 
Then, particularly in the City of Philadelphia, those rates ran 
wild. Every one of my colleagues from the city in this 
Chamber understood it, and we began, somewhat like John 
the Baptist, here in Harrisburg trying to get people to under
stand the problem. And realistically, we understood that the 
rest of this Commonwealth did not have an automobile insur
ance crisis, but we absolutely had it. About two years ago, 
with growing pressures, an amazing thing occurred in the 
automobile insurance market. The higher rates spilled to the 
suburban counties and just began leaking to some other parts 
of Pennsylvania. I understand today that there are both law
makers and people in parts of this Commonwealth who rather 
justifiably believe we do not have an automobile insurance 
crisis. We do, without question, in Philadelphia and now in 
southeastern Pennsylvania. 

We began our process. There is another difference I think 
needs to be mentioned because we get so bludgeoned by the 
opposite impression in this state's media. None of the so
called powerful interests ordinarily involved in the crafting of 
automobile insurance reform legislation are happy today in 
Pennsylvania. The insurance industry does not like this legis
lation. No one believed a few months ago an overwhelming 
majority of votes out of this Senate Chamber would accept a 
limited tort option-not a happy pill for the trial lawyers of 
this Commonwealth. You would have been hard-pressed a 
year ago convincing anybody, particularly an editorial board 
in this state, that we would be capping medical costs vis-a-vis 
automobile insurance at 110 percent of Medicare. 

We have taken, as a Body and a Legislature, very signifi
cant steps. I want to publicly say as a Philadelphian, and I 
know this can apply to any colleague of mine, Democrat or 

· Republican from that city, that we want to say, "thank you" 
to all of them-yes, a Governor who identified this problem, 
but without a doubt, in this Chamber, a chairman in the gen
tleman from Montgomery, Senator Holl, whom I for one 
have worn out for several seasons, and a leader in the gentle-

. man from Delaware, Joe Loeper, who stepped forward on 
our behalf and in bipartisan fashion with the new Speaker of 
the House, Bob O'Donnell, and never took the pressure off in 
what have been the closing months and final hours of getting 
us to a point where we can see rates reduced. We had our 
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terms in this Senate and they were finally understood. We 
were going to meet the administration at least halfway. We 
wanted mandated reductions. I am not unhappy. There will 
be Philadelphians who, I guess, will say, 10 percent across the 
board or 22 percent by the time I take the limited tort really 
does not mean a lot to me. Please, if there is any change it is 
going to be made between now and the magical moment of 
final passage. Let me go home to Philadelphia and tell them 
before they renew on July 1st, that next week they could have 
a 22 percent reduction in those premiums. We will take it the 
way it is. 

As a final observation I would make, much of the success 
of this is going to depend on phenomena beyond the legisla
tive act. There will be any number of discussions or threats of 
lawsuits over this. I want to publicly say to the insurance 
industry-any part of it in Pennsylvania-for the quiet 
chatter that has begun in this Capitol Building and now is 
going to shoot out across Pennsylvania, we are in the process 
of re-creating California, and insurance will not be available 
and you will have a crisis on your hands. This one Senator 
committed to those reduced rates says to you, be my guest and 
try us. It ought to be understood by now, after all we have 
been through on this, this Legislature is deadly serious about 
making more available and more affordable automobile 
insurance rates, particularly where people have been punished 
by the rates they are paying in southeastern Pennsylvania. 
Also, this is a tough piece on the uninsured motorist. It is 
designed to be that. I would take this opportunity to make a 
public plea that we enforce it where we· have had the worst 
problem, in the City of Philadelphia. We are not the cops of 
the Commonwealth sitting in this Body. Enforce the mechan
isms that are put in place here to crack down on those who 
have not had insurance and believe they can drive these high
ways not facing the financial responsibility that we, by law, 
are going to require with this vote. 

In summation, Mr. President, a final Philadelphia perspec
tive on automobile insurance. What has happened in that 
great city that a few of us in here serve and love? Everybody 
figured out how to abuse a system. The insurance industry 
abused it. Some parts of the legal profession certainly abused 
it. Some small part of the medical profession learned how to 
rip it off. The consumer in Philadelphia learned how to abuse 
it with the litigiousness that is almost without parallel in any 
other major urban jurisdiction in this land. Hopefully, with 
the passage of House Bill No. 121, that we ought to take some 
pride in, we have taken a runaway system and put it back on 
track. Hopefully, for the area of the Commonwealth that 
brought you this problem, we will be able to come back here, 
beginning July 1st, and for some months afterward, as people 
renew those policies at a reduced rate and say, thank you, at 
least we have taken a step toward making automobile insur
ance available to our people. 

Senator AFFLERBACH. Mr. President, seldom have I lis
tened to so many of our colleagues indicate that they intend to 
vote for a piece of legislation by focusing upon the concerns 
and the flaws and the genuine parts of the legislation with 

which they disagree. It would appear that I am going to be in 
the abject minority today, because, frankly, I cannot do that. 
As I look at this piece of legislation, I am reminded of a trip I 
took to Washington, D.C. some years ago, and as I arrived 
late in the evening and drove down beside the Potomac 
River-it was a clear, moonlit night-I glanced toward the 
river and I was enticed to pull off at one of the tourist sight
seeing spots to watch the river, because the moonlight was 
shining on it and there was just a bit of turbidity, and to 
borrow a phrase, it appeared that there were a thousand 
points of light twinkling and reflecting upon that river. I 
found after I had pulled off to the tourist stop and gotten out 
of the car to walk to the edge of the river, a stench began to 
arise that became so intolerable it forced me back from the 
bank, and I realized that what I had seen twinkling and 
shining and enticing me was, in fact, dead fish floating on the 
river. Mr. President, this river of words is equally enticing, 
equally twinkling, but the closer one gets to it, the more the 
stench becomes the same. Yes, there are good parts to this 
bill. Some of those parts have been enumerated but, in fact, 
the same illusion that occurred on the Potomac River occurs 
here. The proposal is illusionary. The savings are illusionary 
in the sense that they are not tied in any real manner whatso
ever to the economics of the matter, but will occur simply 
because this Legislature and this Governor have decided to 
mandate them and to freeze them for two years. What then 
happens at the end of those two years? If anyone believes this 
legislation with these proposals of a mandatory rollback, a 
mandatory freeze and a two-tier system of justice is going to 
make insurance more readily available in this Commonwealth 
or legitimately going to save consumers money on their pre
miums, I suggest you are in for a sad awakening. Very clearly, 
the bill tilts toward the large national, multi-state insurance 
companies and works a much harder penalty, if you will, 
upon the smaller companies based solely, wholly or in great 
part in this Commonwealth. Yes, I am aware there is a provi
sion in there that allows these companies to go before the 
Insurance Commissioner on a hardship case, so to speak. I 
suggest to you that the policyholders of those companies will 
realize minimal, if any, savings, should that occur. I could go 
on and reiterate many of the concerns with this legislation that 
others have done. In fact, I could go on practically page by 
page and reiterate concerns in this bill. But let me just 
mention one which I think is probably one of the most impor
tant aspects of the bill, and that has to do with the idea of two 
individuals, one who has selected the full tort system, one who 
has selected the limited tort system, being involved in an acci
dent, and the individual who has full tort chooses to sue the 
individual with limited tort. Under this proposal that individ
ual cannot defend himself by filing a countersuit. Mr. :fresi
dent, I suggest that is very much akin to sending two boxers 
into the ring and tying one's feet. That individual may be able 
to defend himself reasonably well with his hands to prevent 
himself from being too sorely beaten, but he is certainly going 
to lose the match. That is just one inequity that this bill estab
lishes. The whole idea of the two-tier system of justice is 
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another inequity, and so on down the line. Mr. President, I 
can say, in closing, the biggest irony of this legislation is it 
establishes a new crime with new penalties called insurance 
fraud. I suggest this bill is the largest fraud perpetrated upon 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and I am clearly voting 
against it. 

LEGISLATIVE LEA VE CANCELLED 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair notes the pres
~nce on the floor of Senator Peterson and his leave will be 
Q.ancelled. 

And the question recurring, 
Will the Senate agree to the motion? 

Senator ARMSTRONG. Mr. President, I have been here, I 
think, fourteen years now, and we have been trying to solve 
this problem almost every year. But every seven or eight years 
it comes up for a vote, and every time we have not solved the 
problem, although we told the people we were going to solve 
the problem. 

The other night I was home and my third son, 18-year-old 
Chris, came out to me and said, Dad, this is a good bill. He 
said, I read in the paper that we are going to save 22 percent 
on insurance. You have to vote for it. That is what the general 
public is thinking, that they are going to save 22 percent auto
~atically. That is the whole cornerstone of this bill. If you 
have a $1,000 premium, you will save 22 percent. People are 
probably already spending that money. They think they are 
going to save $220, and their premium would be now $780, 
starting July 1st. They are being misled. This bill kind of 
reminds me of someone who wants to save money on his 
homeowners insurance. They have a $100,000 home and they 
start cutting things out, and all of a sudden they now insure it 
for $25,000. They think they are saving money. It is really a 
great deal until the house bums down. People think they are 
going to have car insurance, and it will be all right until they 
get into a serious automobile accident or some other accident 
where they are going to need medical funds. Another part of 
this is the hospitals. I do not know if you are aware of it, but 
our hospitals are in dire straits. Some are closing. Their bond 
ratings are being downgraded, and next year you are going to 
see several more in Pennsylvania close their doors. Now we 
are saying to them, treat these people who come in there at 
below what it costs you, but I guess you can make it up in 
volume. It is not going to work. It has an adverse impact on 
the hospitals, and it is going to be detrimental to Pennsyl
vania. 

We have another commission up here, the PUC, that con
trols telephones, taxis and electric bills. Why do we not have a 
22 percent reduction rate across the board for those? The 
people back home are going to be tickled pink about getting 
electric bills reduced 22 percent. It is just not right. You just 
cannot cut something 22 percent and just force it on some
body. That is not the free enterprise system. We are also 
shifting the burden from the insurer to the people, back to 
small business. Let them pick it up on their insurance policies 
when they get into an accident. This is not good for Pennsyl-

vania to impact adversely on our small businesses. We now 
have to have, if this passes, financial responsibility cards. Can 
you imagine the red tape we are going to have to have finding 
those things when people go for inspection and cannot find 
them because they are misplaced or just thought they were not 
important? The penalties probably are not strong enough. 
People who want to bilk the system or do not want to buy 
insurance that is $3,000 or $5,000, if they get caught without 
insurance, I think the penalty is only $300 and a thirty-day 
restriction in driving. That is not much of a hammer to keep 
over somebody's head for not having insurance. Part of the 
proyision is that the Department of Transportation is prohib
ited from registering a vehicle without all of the information 
on the automobile insurance being filled out on that registra
tion form. 

Let me tell you a true story. I had two cars I had registered, 
and on the first one that came to me, it said put your insur
ance company on it. I filled in "Mickey Mouse Insurance 
Company." Under my insurance number I put "246 HIKE." 
I put my right telephone number down, signed it and sent it 
in. Very prompt, three weeks later I got it back. Well, I 
thought, maybe someone did not catch it. I got the next regis
tration and put on there "Armstrong Mutual Insurance 
Company." I liked that ring to it. I put in my registration 
number for my insurance, "USMC094513." It happened to 
be my Marine Corps serial number. Very good. Promptly, 
three weeks later I get it back in the mail. They are very effi
cient over there. I wondered what the problem was so I went 
over there and they have a huge room full of peopJe. Every 
day they get a stack. I guess there are about six and a half 
million cars in Pennsylvania, divide this by the number of 
people over there, that is how many they have to process a 
day. It is just a numbers game. On that stack were all these 
forms with checks and everything else, and those people have 
to get through that stack each day. You would think they 
would be computerized. I did not see a computer, not at all. If 
we do not address that problem, what are we trying to do? It 
is a joke. We have to spend some bucks and get computerized 
so we can get the system working so we can track these down 
and solve the problem, and this bill does not even talk about 
that problem. 

The bill also says insurance companies must report can
celled policies. Well, you report it and how long is it before 
this gets through the systems? Four months? Five months? Six 
months? Who knows? If they will issue something under 
Mickey Mouse Insurance Company, I do not know how they 
can stop someone who cancels their insurance and keeps on 
going. This bill kind of reminds me of trying to sell something 
to someone, like a home that has major, major cracks in the 
foundation, but you fill them up with putty, you paint them 
and you sell the home. It is a good deal until six weeks later 
or six months later, perhaps, the people get a couple of rain~ 
and the ground starts shifting some more and all of a sudden 
these cracks start reappearing. Guess what? You are in court. 
That is exactly where this bill is going to be. It is going right to 
court, and the people are not going to see a reduction. 
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We are trying to solve a very complex problem with a politi
cal solution. I do admire the gentleman from Delaware, 
Senator Loeper, the gentleman from Montgomery, Senator 
Holl, and the gentleman from Allegheny, Senator Scanlon, in 
the Senate who have tried to address this problem. It is a very, 
very complex problem. But I do not think by voting "yes" 
you are going to appease your opponent because if you do not 
vote "yes," I guess your opponent will knock you over the 
head and say. you should have saved 22 percent on all of our 
premiums. However, I guarantee the problems are going to 
surface prior to the November election. The gentle lady from 
Philadelphia, Senator Jones, said there is good news and there 
is bad news. The good news is tomorrow people think they are 
going to get a rate deduction. The bad news is July 1st they 
will not get it. By passing this, what we are doing is relieving 
some of the pressure. I do not think we should pass it now. 
The pressure is building. I honestly think we can solve this 
problem and solve it properly. The pressure is here, but by 
passing this today, what we are going to do to this issue is say 
we now have solved the problem for another year, two years 
or three years until the pressure builds up again. I guarantee 
you, come July, people are going to be furious when they find 
out they did not get a reduction. in their insurance policies, 
because they are counting on it. 

Senator ANDREZESKI. Mr. President, I was looking 
through the bill trying to concisely figure out where the eco
nomic advantage is going to be on passage of the bill, and the 
one thought that came to me was the section of the bill that 
talked about allowing constables and sheriffs' departments to 
confiscate license plates of those people who are deemed to be 
uninsured. I thought that a real economic advantage is going 
to be to those people who sell battery-powered screwdrivers 
because people can now carry them in a holster and just take 
offlicense plates all day long, legally. 

On a more serious note, some areas of this bill should be 
noted that they do not help people whom we represent spe
cifically on the threshold end of this, having a $5,000 medical 
threshold and basing that on IO percent of Medicare. I would 
like to make a few comments on that. First of all, the State of 
Michigan has the same threshold, and the threshold level in 
Michigan allows you to get unlimited medical and a substan
tial wage loss benefit. In Pennsylvania we are doing a $5,000 
major ~edical benefit threshold. We are not providing what 
will be needed if you get in a very serious accident. Secondly, I 
would like to reiterate for the record that we seem to be selling 
the rights of individuals to the judicial system in return for a 
premium reduction. If you want less rights, you get less bene
fits, and the poor obviously are going to be forced to sell their 
rights. 

I would like to address the rate rollback. I would really like 
to see a rate rollback, and I suppose when they call the roll I 
am going to have to vote for this because I would truly like to 
see a rate rollback. But I would like to, for the benefit of my 
colleagues, spend a few minutes talking about just what rate 
_rollbacks have done. As we know, the rate rollback issue was 
started in California. They do not have a Legislature out 

there. They have a hundred referendums every time they have 
a General Election, and that is how they govern. But the 
California referendum of November 1988 mandated a 20 
percent rollback. I would like to also point out this was a real 
economic boom for advertising agencies in California who 
reaped tremendous profits over the campaigns for and against 
this referendum. The California Supreme Court stuck its nose 
into this because after the referendum passed, they said, 
although this was a referendum passed in a constitutional 
manner, the people, perhaps, did not know what they were 
doing for some reason, and they have held up that reduction. 
To add some fuel to the fire in California, the California 
Supreme Court has now ruled that the insurance companies 
can quit selling policies in the state without having to find 
replacement coverage for their customers. Obviously they put 
some enchantment in the hand of the insurance industry in 
their bargaining position here-all of this from 1988 on. We 
have had about a dozen states come out with plans to reduce 
insurance and some of them have been like the State of 
Michigan, which came up with a form of no-fault limited tort 
plan. The State of New Jersey pools its own insurances and 
there is a debt of over $3 billion on that. Of all of the states 
that have done this, there has only been one state that actually 
effected a reduction, and that was South Carolina which got a 
5 percent cut because they mandated seat belt usage and that 
sort of stuck. From 1984 to 1988 the national average for auto 
insurance costs has risen 37.4 percent. We are not alone on 
this issue. 

I would close by saying as we vote for this, and as people 
talk about it, the headlines in the newspapers talk about a 22 
percent rollback or a IO percent rollback. If history has some 
effect on this, we will join the history of about thirteen other 
states who have tried rollbacks, mandated rollbacks or refer
endum rollbacks and still have not delivered that for their 
constituents. Some light at the end of this tunnel, Mr. Presi
dent, might be the fact that this is the first time I have seen an 
insurance reform bill come through the General Assembly 
that has literally offended everybody that it has affected. On 
the basis of offending all of the special interest groups that it 
does affect, there might be some limited light at the end of the 
tunnel for the consumers out there, and I certainly hope that 
light will shine a little brighter as we continue this process. 

Senator PETERSON. Mr. President, I rise today, I guess, 
confused. I have been accused, as a Swede, that sometimes it 
takes Swedes a little longer to digest things. But we say we are 
like elephants, once we learn them we do not forget them. I do 
remember vividly, back in '79, '80 and '81, when we were 
debating insurance when I was a Member of the House and a 
Member of the Insurance Committee. I remember back then 
all we went through and the pure, perfect compromise we 
were given, and I had my doubts then and I have my doubts 
now. I want to compliment the leadership, though, on what I 
think is an admirable job of bringing two very diverse ideas 
together. I am amazed they have been able to do that. 

In trying to understand this bill-I want to be very honest
as of last night, as of early this morning, I was not sure how I 
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was going to vote. I have been supportive of auto insurance 
reform. I voted for a number of plans here this year. I think 
my history shows that I even voted in the House for a reform 
bill that was not really no-fault, the original bill, but we were 
going to try to make it no-fault. I voted for the plan that is in 
existence today. I voted for the chance to choose here eariier 
this year. 

Today, in trying to prepare for this vote, I called New 
Jersey and I talked to an insurance department person there. I 
\Vant to tell you we do not want to copy anything after what 
d:tey are doing because we are in good shape when you 
compare it to what is happening in New Jersey. The half hour 
I spent talking with them was not a very good learning experi
ence of how we should go. I also had about a forty-five 
minute discussion with people in Michigan in the insurance 
department there. I found out the system they have is a pure 
no-fault system. Our threshold is patterned after that. Then I 
had a good, long discussion for maybe an hour with Kentucky 
who also has about a fifteen-year history of a choice system, 
but not the system we have. It does not compare in any way. I 
guess as we vote today, we really do not know how this kind 
of a system will work because there is no one else out there 
quite like us that I am aware of. I also have the concern of 
how it is going to impact in rural areas because I represent the 
most rural part of the state, and I have not totally determined 
that yet, though I have spent a lot of time reading and trying 
to study in the last day. I do share the concern that was just 
shared by the gentleman from Lancaster, Senator Armstrong, 
on the impact on rural hospitals. Those of you who are not 
aware should be aware that because of Medicare and Medi
caid inadequate reimbursements, rural hospitals are in 
trouble. This bill under its present structure is going to add to 
that burden, not purposely, but just adding one more weight 
upon their backs in trying to remain and exist. I do not think 
anyone will argue that we must maintain our rural hospitals if 
we are going to have any kind of quality health care. I think in 
trying to bring two very diverse sides together, we have bred a 
horse and a donkey and we have ended up with a mule. We all 
know we can create mules, but mules cannot reproduce. I am 
not sure this program is not going to work. I hope it does. I 
will root from this day forward that this system works and 
helps cut costs. But I do not understand it well enough to 
believe that. 

My father only had an eighth-grade education but he was 
one of the wiser people whom I knew. He often told me when 
you are going to make a major decision, if you are in doubt, 
vote "no." I am going to vote "no" today, not because I do 
not want this to work, not because I have an impassioned 
feeling against either side in this controversy, but because I 
am not sure. I hope it does work. I hope the people of Penn
sylvania end up with a system that is fair and equitable to all. 
But I am not sure in the amount of time I have had to study 
this issue and educate myself, and for that reason only I am 
not going to criticize any part of it. I am not going to criticize 
those who put it together. I commend them on a lot of hard 
work. Today I am not asking anyone else to vote "no." I am 

just going to vote "no" myself because I have doubts I just 
have not had time to clarify. I find there have been times since 
I have been in this process that if I would have done that, I 
would have been happier and healthier down the road. So, 
today I am voting "no" for the reasons I have shared. 

Senator SALVATORE. Mr. President, I will be brief this 
time. I just wanted to say being part of the Committee on 
Banking and Insurance, we had public hearings. I wanted to 
commend the gentleman from Montgomery, Senator Holl, 
for all the hearings we had and the bills we passed. At one of 
the hearings, the subject of enforcement in Philadelphia came 
up .. We had the Police Commissioner before us on that day, 
and the Police Commissioner said he could not enforce the 
law. I am hoping with this type of enforcement we are putting 
in place, we can get the Police Commissioner of Philadelphia 
to cooperate with the limited police force they have so we can 
get that uninsured motorist off the street. I hope that 
happens. 

The other thing, Mr. President, is I would be remiss if I did 
not thank our Majority Leader, because when the gentleman 
from Philadelphia, Senator Rocks, and I went to him a few 
months ago and said, we have a problem in Philadelphia with 
insurance, we need your help, he went to bat for us and did 
everything he possibly could, way back months ago, to try to 
help us in Philadelphia. Unfortunately, he could only get 
what we have today. I know he wanted more, but I know in 
this business you have to compromise. I guess to get what we 
have, he had to compromise. But I want to thank him and his 
staff for diligently working so hard to try to make it better for 
the people in Philadelphia. It might not be a cure-all-and I 
do not think it is-as I said earlier. It is not going to be near 
enough, but I know he really gave it all he had to try to help us 
in Philadelphia. Thank you, publicly, Mr. Majority Leader 
and your staff. 

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I would ask for tempo
rary Capitol leaves on behalf of Senator Baker, Senator 
Greenwood, Senator Corman, Senator Fisher and Senator 
Holl. 

Senator MELLOW. Mr. President, I would like temporary 
Capitol leaves for Senator Bodack, Senator Fattah, Senator 
Jones, Senator Porterfield, Senator Regoli and Senator Stout. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. Senator Loeper requests 
temporary Capitol leaves for Senator Baker, Senator Green
wood, Senator Corman, Senator Fisher and Senator Holl. 
Senator Mellow requests temporary Capitol leaves for 
Senator Bodack, Senator Fattah, Senator Jones, Senator 
Porterfield, Senator Regoli and Senator Stout. The Chair 
hears no objection and those leaves will be granted. 

And the question recurring, 
Will the Senate agree to the motion? 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, as I said, I will try and 
make my remarks brief today. However, I think it is very 
important we do, for purposes of the record, outline some of 
the progress we have made to get to this point. I certainly 
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think some of the previous speakers and, specifically, the gen
tleman from Montgomery, Senator Holl, as Chairman of our 
Committee on Banking and Insurance, indicated and all the 
Members are well aware of the various insurance proposals 
that we have had before us in this Senate over the past year 
and a half. I think what we have before us today, Mr. Presi
dent, represents a major step forward for Pennsylvania's 
motorists. I believe we have before us a bill that is intended to 
provide reductions in premiums, but also it has many new 
provisions that attack the causes that drive up insurance rates. 
I think we have heard again many of the facets we are trying 
to go after, particularly in fraud and abuse, the uninsured 
motorist, to try and make sure we are going to limit the 
amount of costs to the insurance industry. I would, Mr. Presi
dent, however, like to point out one thing that I think has 
been missed in the debate here on the floor today. I listened 
intently to the debate in the House of Representatives earlier 
when people were concerned about the 10 percent and addi
tional 12 percent minimum reductions that motorists would 
receive in Pennsylvania under the proposal before us. Mr. 
President, I think it would be important to note other than the 
10 percent and 12 percent that is outlined in the bill, there are 
also incentives for Pennsylvania motorists to take other 
options, to have a choice of additional coverages or coverages 
they wish not to purchase which again could increase the 
amount of savings to each motorist in excess of the 10 percent 
or 22 percent, depending which system they would plan to 
participate in. I think just as a point of clarification, Mr. 
President, there was a question raised in the House during 
debate today that dealt with, is everyone going to get their 10 
percent or 12 percent mandated rollbacks that are in effect? I 
think it is important to point out this, in fact, is outlined in the 
bill and is specified in the bill as far as rollbacks that would 
take effect July 1st for every motorist who holds a policy in 
the state. Of course, during the matter of debate there was the 
question of the inadequacy of rates of companies at this par
ticular time and whether, in fact, rate relief could not be 
granted during a period of the freeze and subsequent rollback. 
I think it would be important, Mr. President, and I would just 
like to take a moment to read some language that is in the bill 
which I believe clarifies that particular situation. I think it is 
important to note the Conference Committee Report on 
House Bill No. 121 contains specific standards which permit 
the Insurance Commissioner to grant rate relief to an insur
ance company, should it be necessary, in extraordinary cir
cumstances. I would indicate for the Members' information, 
Mr. President, that is outlined on page 60, in line 9, and it 
would be the intent of the General Assembly that this section 
create higher standards than those that are already contained 
in The Casualty and Surety Rate Regulatory Act. It is further 
the intent of the General Assembly, Mr. President, that the 
standards contained in Section 1799. 7 would take precedence 
over The Casualty and Surety Rate Regulatory Act, and in 
this section-and it is specific in its requirements-rates 
would be frozen at December 1, 1989 levels and, therefore, 
thus reduced to reflect the provisions of this act. Mr. Presi-

dent, I want it made clear for the purpose of the record that it 
would be our intent that this section supersede any conflicting 
standards that may be in that act and, therefore, Section 
1799. 7 would control the rate filings as required by this act. 

I think, Mr. President, in conclusion, as many of the speak
ers have well pointed out today on the floor, we have visited 
this issue time and time again in this General Assembly over 
the past many years. We visited in the '70s, we visited in the 
'80s and here we are in the '90s, and I am sure, Mr. President, 
we may very well be back in a position during this decade to 
possibly review this issue, maybe to fint»tune it somewhat, but 
I believe in House Bill No. 121, the Conference Committee 
Report before us today in this Chamber, we have the essential 
and basic framework for insurance reform in Pennsylvania to 
bring rate relief to Pennsylvania motorists. 

LEGISLATIVE LEAVES CANCELLED 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Chair notes the pres
ence on the floor of Senator Greenwood, Senator Bodack and 
Senator Porterfield and their temporary Capitol leaves will be 
cancelled. 

And the question recurring, 
Will the Senate agree to the motion? 

(During the calling of the roll, the following occurred:) 
Senator SHAFFER. Mr. President, I would like to change 

my vote from "aye" to "no." 
The PRESIDENT pro temp~:>re. The gentleman will be so 

recorded. 

The yeas and nays were taken agreeably to the provisions of 
the Constitution and were as follows, viz: 

Andrezeski Greenwood 
Baker Helfrick 
Be Ian Hess 
Bell Holl 
Boda ck Hopper 
Brightbill Jones 
Corman Jubelirer 
Dawida Lemmond 
Fattah Lewis 
Fisher Lincoln 
Furno Loeper 
Greenleaf 

Afflerbach Madigan 
Armstrong 

YEAS-45 

Lynch 
Mellow 
Musto 
O'Pake 
Pecora 
Porterfield 
Punt 
Rego Ii 
Reibman 
Rhoades 
Rocks 

NAYS-5 

Peterson 

Ross 
Salvatore 
Scanlon 
Shumaker 
Stapleton 
Stewart 
Stout 
Tilghman 
Wenger 
Williams 
Wilt 

Shaffer 

A constitutional majority of all the Senators having voted 
"aye,'' the question was determined in the affirmative. 

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Senate inform the House 
of Representatives accordingly. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

Senator PETERSON, from the Committee on Public 
Health and Welfare, reported the following bills: 
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SB 521 (Pr. No. 545) 

An Act amending the act of November 24, 1976 (P. L. 1182, 
No. 262), entitled "Hearing Aid Sales Registration Law," pro
viding for duties of the advisory council; and requiring continu
ing education. 

SB 1389 (Pr. No. 1788) 

An Act amending the act of October 20, 1966 (3rd Sp. Sess., P. 
L. 96, No. 6), entitled "Mental Health and Mental Retardation 
Act of 1966," repealing provisions relating to county liability; 
and discharging certain county liability. 

Senator ROCKS, from the Committee on Inter
governmental Affairs, reported the following bill: 

HB 1561 (Pr. No. 1822) 

An Act authorizing and directing the Department of Transpor
tation, with the approval of the Governor, to convey to the 
United States Department of the Interior portions of certain State 
highways located in Montgomery and Chester Counties, Pennsyl
vania. 

RESOLUTION REPORTED FROM COMMITTEE 

Senator ROCKS, from the Committee on Inter
governmental Affairs, reported the following resolution: 

SR 122 (Pr. No. 1795) 

A Resolution urging the Governor to establish an economic 
partnership and a trade mission with Poland, in particular, and 
Eastern Europe, in general, in light of the changing political and 
economic conditions in the Soviet bloc. 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The resolution will be 
placed on the Calendar. 

BILL IN PLACE 

Senator ANDREZESKI presented to the Chair a bill. 

DISCHARGE PETITIONS 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following communication, which was read by the Clerk as 
follows: 

In the Senate, February 7, 1990. 

A PETITION 

To place before the Senate the nomination of Nancy Lewis as a 
member of the Brandywine Battlefield Park Commission. 

TO: The Presiding Officer of the Senate 

WE, The undersigned members of the Senate, pursuant to 
section 8 (b) of Article IV of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, do 
hereby request that you place the nomination of Nancy Lewis, 
West Chester, Pennsylvania, as a member of the Brandywine Bat
tlefield Park Commission, before the entire Senate body for a 
vote, the nomination not having been voted upon within 15 legis
lative days: 

Roy W. Wilt 
F. Joseph Loeper 
Robert C. Jubelirer 
Noah W. Wenger 
David J. Brightbill 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following communication, which was read by the Clerk as 
follows: 

In the Senate, February 7, 1990. 

A PETITION 
To place before the Senate the nomination of Larry Filiaggi as a 

member of the State Board of Vehicle Manufacturers, Dealers 
and Salespersons. 

TO: The Presiding Officer of the Senate 
WE, The undersigned members of the Senate, pursuant to 

section 8 (b) of Article IV of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, do 
hereby request that you place the nomination of Larry Filiaggi, 
Uniontown, Pennsylvania, as a member of the State Board of 
Vehicle Manufacturers, Dealers and Salespersons, before the 
entire Senate body for a vote, the nomination not having been 
voted upon within 15 legislative days: 

Roy W. Wilt 
F. Joseph Loeper 
Robert C. Jubelirer 
Noah W. Wenger 
David J. Brightbill 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following communication, which was read by the Clerk as 
follows: 

In the Senate, Fe~ruary 7, 1990. 

A PETITION 

To place before the Senate the nomination ~f A. Richard Gerber 
as a member of the Pennsylvania Securities Commission. 

TO: The Presiding Officer of the Senate 

WE, The undersigned members of the Senate, pursuant to 
section 8 (b) of Article IV of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, do 
hereby request that you place the nomination of A. Richard 
Gerber, Pennllyn, Pennsylvania, as a member of the Pennsyl
vania Securities Commission, before the entire Senate body for a 
vote, the nomination not having been voted upon within 15 legis
lative days: 

Roy W. Wilt 
F. Joseph Loeper 
Robert C. Jubelirer 
Noah W. Wenger 
David J. Brightbill 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following communication, which was read by the Clerk as 
follows: 

In the Senate, February 7, 1990. 



1712 LEGISLATIVE JOURNAL-SENATE FEBRUARY 7, 

A PETITION 
To place before the Senate the nomination of Lorraine Martin as 

a member of the Board of Trustees of White Haven Center. 
TO: The Presiding Officer of the Senate 

WE, The undersigned members of the Senate, pursuant to 
section 8 (b) of Article IV of the Constitution of Pennsylvania, do 
hereby request that you place the nomination of Lorraine Martin, 
Ashley, Pennsylvania, as a member of the Board of Trustees of 
White Haven Center, before the entire Senate body for a vote, the 
nomination not having been voted upon within 15 legislative 
days: 

Roy W. Wilt 
F. Joseph Loeper 
Robert C. Jubelirer 
Noah W. Wenger 
David J. Brightbill 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The communications will 
be laid on the table. 

CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following resolutions, which were read, considered and 
adopted: 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to John 
Ralph, Jr. by Senator Bell. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Zack J. 
D' Alesandro, Jr. and to the Brentwood Civic Club by Senator 
Fisher. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and 
Mrs. Clyde Sholley, Mr. and Mrs. Russel Grugan, Mr. and 
Mrs. Woodrow Kauffman, Mr. and Mrs. Huston Bucher, 
Robert H. Heydenreich, Jesse L. Weaver and to Mr. and Mrs. 
Larue Bitler by Senator Helfrick. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to 
Montgomery County Community College of Blue Bell by 
Senator Holl. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and 
Mrs. Albert Jenkins, Mr. and Mrs. Ralph P. Jones, Mr. and 
Mrs. Edmund Sup~ncic, Mr. and Mrs. Clyde R. Whitesell 
and to Mr. and Mrs. Edward Wolfinger by Senator 
Lemmond. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mary 
Ziegenfuss by Senator Loeper. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Honorable 
James E. Ross by Senator Mellow. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Wayne C. 
Biemesser by Senator Pecora. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Earl E. 
Ecker by Senator Punt. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Blake 
Heffner and to Brian M. Smith by Senator Reibman. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mr. and 
Mrs. Jerome Taylor, Airborne Forces of the United States 
Army and to Nazareth Hospital of Philadelphia by Senator 
Salvatore. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to the Perry 
Traditional Academy Football Team of Pittsburgh by Senator 
Scanlon. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Mary 
Spohn and to Hazel Gant by Senator Shaffer. 

Congratulations of the Senate were extended to Deacon 
Joseph Robinson, Jr. by Senator Shumaker, 

BILLS ON FIRST CONSIDERATION 

Senator MADIGAN. Mr. President, I move the Senate do 
now proceed to consideration of all bills reported from com
mittees for the first time at today's Session. 

The motion was agreed to. 
The bills were as follows: 

SB155,408,521,561, 1059, 1099, 1120,1213; 1389, 1415, 
HB382and 1561. 

And said bills having been considered for the first time, 
Ordered, To be printed on the Calendar for second consid

eration. 

COMMUNICATION FROM THE GOVERNOR 

NOMINATION BY THE GOVERNOR 
REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore laid before the Senate the 
following communication in writing from His Excellency, the 
Governor of the Commonwealth, which was read as follows, 
and referred to the Committee on Rules and Executive Nomi
nations: 

DISTRICT JUSTICE 

February 7, 1990. 

To the Honorable, the Senate of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania: 
In conformity with law, I have the honor hereby to nominate 

for the advice and consent of the Senate, Robert M. Sable, 526 
Steiner Street, Pittsburgh 15227, Allegheny County, Forty-third 
Senatorial District, for appointment as District Justice in and for 
the County of Allegheny, Magisterial District 5-2-18, to serve 
until the first Monday of January, 1992, vice Robert R. Graff, 
resigned. 

ROBERT P. CASEY. 

HOUSE MESSAGES 

HOUSE CONCURS IN SENATE AMENDMENTS 
TO HOUSE BILLS 

The Clerk of the House of Representatives informed the 
Senate that the House has concurred in amendments made by 
the Senate to HB 422, 652, 1285 and 1401. 

BILLS SIGNED 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore (Robert C. Jubelirer) in the 
presence of the Senate signed the following bills: 

RB 422, 652, 1285 and 1401. 
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ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SECRETARY 10:30 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - University Caucus Rm 156 
The following announcements were read by the Secretary of of Pittsburgh) 

the Senate: 
11:30 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

SENATE OF PENNSYLVANIA (Budget Hearing - Lincoln Caucus Rm I 56 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS University) 

FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 1990 1:30 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Pennsylvania Caucus Rm 156 
9:30 A.M. JUDICIARY (Public Hearing Room SE-B 

State University) 
to hear testimony from Hearing Room 

individuals and groups East Wing 2:30 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

regarding the October 1989 (Budget Hearing - State Caucus Rm 156 

riots at the Camp Hill State System of Higher Education) 

Correctional Institution) TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 1990 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 1990 9:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

Off the RULES AND EXECUTIVE Rules Committee (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

Floor NOMINATIONS (to consider Conference Room of State) 

Senate Bills No. 557 and 10:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 
1095, Senate Resolution (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 
No. 138 and certain of Education) 
executive nominations) 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 1990 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 1990 

9:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 
9:30 A.M. CONSUMER PROTECTION Room SE-B (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

AND PROFESSIONAL Hearing Room of Corrections) 
LICENSURE (to consider East Wing 

Senate Bill No. 1377, House 11:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

Bills No. 24 and 215; Final (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm I 56 

Form Regulations: 16A-245, of Military Affairs) 

Landscape Architects Board - 1:00 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

Fees, 16A-246, Nurse Board - (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

Applications for Examination of Commerce) 

for Licensure, 16A-247, 
2:30 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

Psychology Board - Fees, 
(Budget Hearing - Judiciary) Caucus Rm 156 

16A-248, Architects Board -

Fees, 16A-249, Accountancy 3:15 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

Board - Fees, 16A-250, (Budget Hearing - Health Caucus Rm 156 

Physical Therapy Board - Fees, Care Cost Containment 

16A-251, Engineer Board - Fees) Council) 

10:00 A.M. ENVIRONMENT AL Room SE-A THURSDAY, MARCH I, 1990 

RESOURCES AND ENERGY Hearing Room 9:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 
(to consider Senate Bill No. East Wing (Budget Hearing - Attorney Caucus Rm I 56 
1437 - Public Hearing Estab- General) 
lishing the Waste Industry 

10:30 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 
Criminal Record Disclosure 

(Budget Hearing - Pennsylvania Caucus Rm I 56 
Act) 

State Police) 
11:30 A.M. FINANCE (to consider Room SE-B 

Senate Majority 1:00 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS 
Senate Bills No. 311, Hearing Room 

(Budget Hearing - Historical Caucus Rm 156 
802, 888 and 1116) East Wing 

and Museum Commission) 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 1990 

2:00 P.M. AP PR OP RIA TIONS Senate Majority 
9:30 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority (Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm I 56 

(Budget Hearing - Temple Caucus Rm 156 of Community Affairs) 
University) 
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MONDAY, MARCH 5, 1990 

9:30 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Transportation) 

11:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Labor and Industry) 

1:00 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing • Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Aging) 

2:30 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing • Governor's Caucus Rm 156 

Office) 

TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 1990 

9:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing · Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Health) 

10:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Public Welfare) 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 7, 1990 

9:00A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate, Majority 

(Budget Hearing • Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Environm~ntal Resources) 

1:00 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Insurance) 

2:30 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Agriculture) 

THURSDAY, MARCH 8, 1990 

9:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - Department Caucus Rm 156 

of Revenue) 

10:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing • Liquor Caucus Rm 156 

Control Board) 

11:00 A.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing - PEMA) Caucus Rm 156 

1:00 P.M. APPROPRIATIONS Senate Majority 

(Budget Hearing Department Caucus Rm 156 

of General Services) 

RECESS 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The Senate will be in recess 
to the call of the Chair. 

AFI'ER RECESS 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore. The time of recess having 
elapsed, the Senate will be in order. 

BILL SIGNED 

The PRESIDENT pro tempore (Robert C. Jubelirer) in the 
presence of the Senate signed the following bill: 

HB121. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Senator LOEPER. Mr. President, I move the Senate do 
now adjourn until Monday, February 12, 1990, at 2:00 p.m., 
Eastern Standard Time, unless sooner recalled by the Presi
dent pro tempore. 

The motion was agreed to. 
The Senate adjourned at 5:00 p.m., Eastern Standard 

Time. 


